
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




2021 Safe Return to In-Person Instruction for Innovations Academy  Page 1 of 4


California Department of Education  
June 2021 
 


American Rescue Plan Act 
Elementary and Secondary School Relief Fund (ESSER III) 


Safe Return to In-Person Instruction 
Local Educational Agency Plan Template 


 
Background on ESSER 
The American Rescue Plan Act (ARP) signed into law on March 11, 2021, provided nearly $122 billion for the Elementary 
and Secondary School Relief Fund (ESSER). ARP ESSER, also known as ESSER III, funds are provided to State educational 
agencies in the same proportion as each State received under Title I-A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
(ESEA) in fiscal year (FY) 2020. The U.S. Department of Education (ED) published Interim Final Requirements (IFR) on April 
22, 2021 requiring Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) receiving ESSER III funds to submit an LEA Plan for the Safe Return to 
In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services. If an LEA had already developed a plan for safe return to in-person 
instruction and continuity of services prior to the enactment of ARP that meets the statutory requirements of section 
2001(i) but did not address all of the requirements in the IFR, the LEA must revise and post its plan no later than six months 
after receiving its ESSER III funds. This applies even if an LEA has been operating full-time in-person instruction but does 
not apply to fully virtual schools and LEAs. 
 


The IFR and ARP statute, along with other helpful resources, are located here:  
• April 2021 IFR: https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2021-04-22/pdf/2021-08359.pdf 
• ARP Act text: https://www.congress.gov/117/bills/hr1319/BILLS-117hr1319enr.pdf 
• Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) COVID-19 School Operation Guidance: 


https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/operation-
strategy.html#anchor_1616080023247 


• ED COVID-19 Handbook Volume I:https://www2.ed.gov/documents/coronavirus/reopening.pdf  
• ED COVID-19 Handbook Volume II:https://www2.ed.gov/documents/coronavirus/reopening-2.pdf 
• ESEA Evidence-Based Guidance:https://oese.ed.gov/files/2020/07/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf 
• ED FAQs for ESSER and Governor’s Emergency Education Relief 


(GEER):https://oese.ed.gov/files/2021/05/ESSER.GEER_.FAQs_5.26.21_745AM_FINALb0cd6833f6f46e03ba2d97
d30aff953260028045f9ef3b18ea602db4b32b1d99.pdf 


 
Purpose of the Template 
The IFR issued by ED outlines several requirements for all LEAs that receive ESSER III funds, including that LEAs have in 
place a plan for ensuring safety during in-person instruction (either in-progress or planned) as well as ensuring continuity 
of services should the LEA or one or more of its schools be required to close temporarily for COVID-19-related public health 
reasons in the future. LEAs who had a plan in place by March 11, 2021, which incorporated opportunity for public comment 
and was posted publicly have six months from the date their ESSER III Assurances were completed to update and revise 
the plans to meet those requirements. Examples of previous plans that may be allowable would be a completed Cal/OSHA 
or Assembly Bill 86 plan, as long as it meets the requirements previously stated. LEAs which did not have a statutorily 
compliant plan in place as of March 11, 2021, must create and post this plan within 30 days of completing their ESSER III 
Assurances.  
 


If you have questions as to which category applies to your LEA, please contact EmergencyServices@cde.ca.gov. Plans are 
required for all LEAs, regardless of operating status, unless an LEA is fully virtual with no physical location. All plans must 
be reviewed, and, as appropriate, revised, at least every six months to incorporate new or revised CDC guidance and other 
changed factors. 
 


This template has been created to assist LEAs in the creation of these plans and to ensure all required elements are met. 
The following requirements and assurances pertain to both the statutory requirements and the IFR published by ED. LEAs 
may provide any additional information they believe are helpful in assessing their plan. If you have any questions, please 
contact EmergencyServices@cde.ca.gov.  



https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2021-04-22/pdf/2021-08359.pdf

https://www.congress.gov/117/bills/hr1319/BILLS-117hr1319enr.pdf

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/operation-strategy.html#anchor_1616080023247

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/operation-strategy.html#anchor_1616080023247

https://www2.ed.gov/documents/coronavirus/reopening.pdf%20

https://www2.ed.gov/documents/coronavirus/reopening-2.pdf

https://oese.ed.gov/files/2020/07/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf

https://oese.ed.gov/files/2021/05/ESSER.GEER_.FAQs_5.26.21_745AM_FINALb0cd6833f6f46e03ba2d97d30aff953260028045f9ef3b18ea602db4b32b1d99.pdf

https://oese.ed.gov/files/2021/05/ESSER.GEER_.FAQs_5.26.21_745AM_FINALb0cd6833f6f46e03ba2d97d30aff953260028045f9ef3b18ea602db4b32b1d99.pdf

mailto:EmergencyServices@cde.ca.gov

mailto:EmergencyServices@cde.ca.gov





2021 Safe Return to In-Person Instruction for Innovations Academy  Page 2 of 4


 
LEA Plan for Safe Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services 


 
LEA Name: Innovations Academy-------- 


 
Option for ensuring safe in-person instruction and continuity of services: 
will amend its plan 


 
1. Please choose one: 


X         The LEA had a plan, as of March 11, 2021, that is already compliant with the ARP statute and will review and, as 
appropriate, revise it every six months to take into consideration the additional requirements of the IFR; or 
 
NOTE: If your LEA already has a compliant plan as of March 11, 2021, and has assured such by checking the 
box above, then you may skip questions 2-4 and complete the Assurance and Contact sections. 


 


         The LEA has amended/created a plan compliant with the IFR using this template and has posted/will post it 
within 30 days of completing the ESSER III Assurances. 
 
NOTE: If checking the box above that you are using this template to meet the 30 day plan requirements, you 
must respond to each question in the template. 


 
Please note whether the LEA has a compliant plan and include a link to the plan, or acknowledge that the LEA is 
submitting a new plan and will post it within 30 days of receiving funds. 


Innovations Academy approved a plan in January 2021 and has reviewed/updated the plan twice. It is located on 
our website at this link: https://innovationsacademy.org/covid19-info/ 


 
2. The LEA will maintain the health and safety of students, educators, and other school and LEA staff, and the extent to 


which it has adopted policies, and a description of any such policies, on each of the CDC’s safety recommendations, 
including: universal and correct wearing of masks; modifying facilities to allow for physical distancing; handwashing 
and respiratory etiquette; cleaning and maintaining healthy facilities, including improving ventilation; contact tracing 
in combination with isolation and quarantine, in collaboration with the State, local, territorial, or Tribal health 
departments; diagnostic and screening testing; efforts to provide vaccinations to school communities; appropriate 
accommodations for children with disabilities with respect to health and safety policies; and coordination with State 
and local health officials. 


 
Describe how the LEA will maintain, or continue to maintain, health and safety policies and procedures. Include a 
description of any adopted policies and procedures regarding the CDC’s safety recommendations (or available LEA 
website links to such policies). Include descriptions of appropriate accommodations adopted and coordination 
efforts conducted with outside State and local health officials. Please include or describe current public health 
conditions, applicable State and local rules and restrictions, and other contemporaneous information that informs 
your decision-making process. 


see COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) 
Safe Return to In Person Instruction 
located on our website here: https://innovationsacademy.org/covid19-info 
LEA Plan for Safe Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services is posted on our website and at the 
entrance to our school building.  


 



https://innovationsacademy.org/covid19-info/

https://innovationsacademy.org/covid19-info





2021 Safe Return to In-Person Instruction for Innovations Academy  Page 3 of 4


3. The LEA will ensure continuity of services, including but not limited to services to address students’ academic needs 
and students’ and staff social, emotional, mental health and other needs, which may include student health and 
foodservices. 
Describe how the LEA will ensure continuity of services in case isolation, quarantine, or future school closures are 
required, including how the LEA will meet the needs of students with disabilities and English learners. 


Innovations Academy provides a free breakfast to all students. Parents may pick up the breakfast if the child is 
absent or quarantined. 
Innovations Academy has a full time Marriage Family Therapist in addition to our School Psychologist. Our MFT 
provides counseling to parents and students based on referral and request. 
Innovations Academy has a staff member designated to teach social skills for reintegration of students and 
teaches these skills in all classrooms. 
Innovations Academy has an established social emotional program that has been in place for 13 years and 
continues to be implemented daily. All teachers receive training prior to commencing the school year. 
Innovations Academy provides a comprehensive independent study plan for all absent students including 
students absent due to isolation, illness and quarantine. Innovations Academy provides all materials and devices 
necessary. 
Innovations Academy provides support to parents during quarantine with their children through weekly director 
office hours via ZOOM. 
Innovations Academy provides tutoring available to all students after school on the minimum day. 
If another closure were to happen, Innovations Academy would provide distance learning every school day in 
which students are not on campus, just as we did during the first closure which will include both daily ZOOM 
instruction, materials pick up at school. 
         


 
4. The LEA sought public comments in the development of its plan and took those comments into account in the 


development of its plan. 
Describe the LEA’s policy or practice that provided the public with an opportunity to provide comments and feedback 
and the collection process. Describe how any feedback was incorporated into the development of the plan. 


Input was received via weekly office hours with the director, parent surveys, input at staff meeting, phone 
conversations and emails from parents. All feedback is considered important. Parent feedback has not been in 
conflict with first drafts created by administration.         


 
In addition, the LEA provides the following assurances: 
 


X          The LEA has made (in the case of statutorily compliant plans) or will make (in the case of new plans) its plan 
publicly available no later than 30 days after receiving its ARP ESSER allocation. 


 o Please insert link to the plan: 
https://innovationsacademy.org/covid19-info/ 


X          The LEA sought public comment in the development of its plan and took those public comments into account 
in the development of its plan. 


X          The LEA will periodically review and, as appropriate revise its plan, at least every six months. 


X          The LEA will seek public comment in determining whether to revise its plan and, if it determines revisions are 
necessary, on the revisions it makes to the plan. 


X          If the LEA revises its plan, it will ensure its revised plan addresses each of the aspects of safety currently 
recommended by the Centers for Disease Control(CDC), or if the CDC has revised its guidance, the updated 
safety recommendations at the time the LEA is revising its plan. 


X          The LEA has created its plan in an understandable and uniform format. 



https://innovationsacademy.org/covid19-info/





2021 Safe Return to In-Person Instruction for Innovations Academy  Page 4 of 4


X          The LEA’s plan is, to the extent practicable, written in a language that parent can understand, or if not 
practicable, orally translated. 


X          The LEA will, upon request by a parent who is an individual with a disability, provide the plan in an alternative 
format accessible to that parent. 


 
The following person or persons is/are the appropriate contact person for any questions or concerns about the 
aforementioned plan. 
 
Please list name(s), title(s), address, county, and contact information for the person or persons responsible for 
developing, submitting, and amending the LEA plan. 


Christine Kuglen, Director, 5454 Ruffin Rd. San Diego, California (San Diego County)  
christine@innovationsacademy.org, 858-271-1414         








Innovations Academy Board Minutes: October 26, 2021 @ 6:00 pm 


Meeting location(s) Telephonic, please use the public call in number 


Innovations Academy 


5454 Ruffin Rd 


San Diego, CA 92123 


5519 McMillan Street  


Oakland, CA 94618  


Public call in number  605-


313-4802* 


Access code 151642 
*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in 


number is provided as a convenience to the public. 


 


Board Attendance 


Nate 


Cooper 


Stephen 


Rosen 


Danielle 


Strachman 


Cassidy 


Platt 


Faraz 


Sharafi 


  


 


Others in Attendance 


Christine 


Kuglen, 


director 


Devon 


Woodruff, 


teacher 


Tony Spitzberg, 


Asst. Director 


Ali Kolb, 


Assmt & Accountability 


Coordinator 


  


 


Agenda 


Topic Minutes 


➢ Call to order / roll call Time / Date 6:05 p.m. 


1. All board members are present and 


attendance was taken via roll call. 


 


➢ Approval of current agenda 


 


Motion to approve current agenda - 


Faraz noted that the word “COBRA” was 


missing from the agenda. Requested that be 


added before approving the agenda. 


Motion to approve modified agenda with 


“COBRA” added.  


1st motion - Danielle Strachman 


2nd motion- Nate Cooper 


Vote: Roll call vote 


In favor: Danielle, Nate, Faraz, Steve, Cassidy 


Opposed : 0 


Abstain: 0 


➢ Approval of prior month meeting minutes 


August 2021 Meeting Minutes 


Motion to approve past minutes -  


1st motion- Steve Rosen 


2nd - Faraz Sharafi 


Vote: Roll call vote 


In favor: Steve. Faraz, Danielle, Nate, Cassidy 


Opposed : 0 


Abstain: 0 


➢ Public comments (3 mins per person) no public comments 


 


Updates 


o Teacher briefing (Cassidy) 


 


Cassidy described the projects that are taking 







o Assessment and Accountability 


briefing (Ali) 


o New teacher support update (Tony) 


 


place in each grade level and some of the field 


trips that have been taken. She introduced 


Devon Woodruff, 7th grade teacher to speak 


about the work she is doing. 


 


Devon spoke about their Big Bear field trip 


and their project about ecosystems and hunger 


games fictional world. 


 


Ali briefed the board on the variety of work 


being done right now such as  managing covid 


quarantines, assessment- getting a handle on 


where our students are academically  using 


schoolwide assessments so we can identify 


strengths and gaps in learning. She also spoke 


about the new middle school assessment and 


new SE assessment which will help us quantify 


the SE work we do as part of our mission. She 


gave a curriculum update on our new math 


curriculum that was chosen by a committee 


last year. It is a problem based curriculum 


which matches the work we do. 


She also shared about the volunteer reading 


program, new TA for special education and 


supporting kids who are struggling these past 


year. 


 


Tony reported on the professional development 


in practice. He spoke about creating role plays 


for teachers to act out common scenarios to 


problem solve solutions and create interactive 


learning for teachers. Also stated that he is 


spending a lot of time in all of the new 


teachers’ classrooms providing support for 


them to learn our methods. One of the main 


goals is to create consistency in our school. 


Tony mentioned that this year has been 


unprecedented in the struggles that we are 


seeing teachers having with student behavior 


and low levels of academics. 


➢ Action item: Policies 


            ESSER 3 Plan Approval 


 


 


 


 


 


Action Item 


Discussion:  Christine explained the ESSER 3 


plan. Ali shared the goals of the funds and why 


some of the areas were chosen.  


➢ Motion to approve the ESSER 3 plan 


➢ 1st motion -  Faraz Sharafi 







 


 


 


 


 


Safety Plan Approval 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Board Resolution for the Spanish 


teacher to teach Spanish with a 


multiple subject credential - not current 


authorization 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Family Handbook Approval 


 


2nd -Stephen  Rosen 


Vote: Roll call vote 


In favor:Nate, Stephen, Cassidy, Faraz, 


Danielle 


Opposed : 0 


Abstain: 0 


Discussion:  Safety Plan Approval. Tony 


shared that this plan is an update of last year’s 


plan with only logistical changes.  


Motion to Approval of Comprehensive Safety 


Plan for 21-22 


➢ 1st motion -  Nate Cooper 


2nd  -Danielle 


Vote: Roll call vote 


In favor: Nate, Steve, Cassidy Faraz, Danielle 


Opposed : 0 


Abstain: 0  


Discussion:  Christine and Ali explained that 


the Spanish teacher has been working with a 


multiple subject credential but since the rules 


have changed, he needs to obtain a single 


subject credential. He is currently working to 


do so. What the board is approving is an 


authorization to work with a credential other 


than the current authorization. 


Motion to approve the resolution to teach 


subjects other than current authorization held. 


➢ 1st motion - Stephen Rosen 


2nd -Faraz Sharafi 


Vote: Roll call vote 


In favor: Nate, Steve, Danielle, Cassidy, Faraz 


Opposed : 0 


Abstain: 0 


Discussion:  Christine shared that all the 


changes for this year were highlighted in red. 


They were mainly dates, names of people in 


certain positions and a change in the complaint 


section made by our legal team based on 


legislative changes. 


Motion to approve Family Handbook 21-22 


➢ 1st motion -  Nate Cooper 


2nd - Danielle Strachman 


Vote: Roll call vote 


In favor: Danielle, Nate, Faraz, Steve, Cassidy 


Opposed : 0 


Abstain: 0 







➢Action Item: Purchases 


            Playground Structure(s) Presentation 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


➢Action Item: New bank account for FSA 


and COBRA   
Approval of opening of a 


 


Action Item 1 -  


Discussion:  Christine presented 4 different 


structures and discussed the benefits and 


drawbacks. She expressed the need for 


something sooner than later as the students are 


really lacking play equipment on the year. 


Nate and Stephen expressed trepidation with 


such a large expense and requested more 


quotes for similar structures to guarantee that 


due diligence was done in the process of 


obtaining this expensive equipment. Stephen 


agreed to get competitive bids for the same  


Explorer Dome and once that information is 


available a special meeting will be called to 


discuss. 


➢ Vote: No vote at this time. 


 


IA has recently established an Flexible 


Spending Account (FSA) for salaried 


employees and discovered that  COBRA  could 


be more easily managed through a third party 


system. In order for that to function, we need 


to give them access to a bank account. 


Christine does not think it wise to allow them 


access to our general account and has asked to 


establish a new bank account exclusively for 


FSA payments and COBRA.  


 


Motion to approve the opening of a new 


bank account at Chase Bank with Christine 


as the signer that will be used for FSA and 


COBRA. 


1st motion -  Nate Cooper 


2nd - Faraz Sharafi 


Vote taken via roll call: 


In favor: Nate, Stephen, Faraz, Cassidy, 


Danielle 


Opposed : 0 


Abstain: 0 


➢ Retreat Discussion items  


Decide new board terms 


 


 


 


 


Decide on altering bylaws to change wording 


New board terms were agreed upon at the last 


meeting. Christine was not present at the end 


of the meeting so she had added it here 


unnecessarily. 


 


The bylaws are very specific about when the 







for board retreat date 


 


retreat will take place. This has been an issue 


for the board. Nate requested that Christine 


write up a change in the bylaws to make the 


board retreat more flexible each year. Nate 


asked that the change be presented at the next 


meeting. 


➢ Next board meeting  


o Confirm date of next meeting Dec 7th, 2021 at 6 p.m. 


o Identify agenda items for next 


meeting 


 


Meeting adjourned  7:32 p.m.  


 


The foregoing minutes were approved by the 


Board of Directors of Innovations Academy 


on _________. 


 


____________________________________ 


       Secretary 







Please contact Innovations Academy Board @ Board@InnovationsAcademy.org if you require 


special assistance or a listening device to attend the Board Meeting.  Requests must be made 48 


hours in advance. 


 


1. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in 


teleconference meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are 


complied with: 


● At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate 


in the teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of the State of 


California; 


● All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;  


● If the Board of Directors elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all 


teleconference  


locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda 


of the  


meeting;  


● All locations where a member of the Board of Directors constituting the quorum 


participates in a  


meeting via teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public and 


shall be listed on  


the agenda;  


● Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall 


be provided  


with an opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference 


location;  


and  


● The agenda shall indicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted 


via  


teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.  


● The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public, to provide their names as a 


condition of attendance at the meeting; however, those wishing to speak may be 


required to identify themselves.  


 


 



mailto:Board@InnovationsAcademy.org






Innovations Academy Board Agenda: 11/17/21@ 12:00 pm 


Special Meeting 


Meeting location(s) 


Innovations Academy 


5454 Ruffin Rd 


San Diego, CA 92123 


5519 McMillan Street  


Oakland, CA 94618  


Public call in number  605-


313-4802* 


Access code 151642 
*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in 


number is provided as a convenience to the public. 


 


Board Attendance 


Stephen 


Rosen 


Danielle 


Strachman 


Faraz 


Sharafi 


    


 


Others in Attendance 


Christine 


Kuglen 


      


 


Agenda 


Topic Minutes 


➢ Call to order / roll call Time / Date 


 11/17/21  12:03 p.m. 


Roll Call Attendance:  


1. Stephen Rosen, Danielle Strachman 


and Faraz Sharafi all present 


Absent: 


1. Nate Cooper, Cassidy Platt 


 


➢ Approval of current agenda Vote to approve current agenda - 


Motion to approve current agenda - Danielle S. 


2nd - Faraz S. 


Roll Call Vote:  


Aye: Stephen, Danielle and Faraz  


Naye: 0 


Abstain: 0 


 


➢ Public comments (3 mins per person) No public comments 


 


➢ Action Item: 


Playground Purchase Proposal 


IA has 3 proposals for a Dome playground 


structure: Kompan, RecRepublic and 


Spruce&Gander 


The director is seeking approval for the 


purchase of the Dome. The director 


recommends the Kompan proposal. 


Stephen shared that he got involved after the 


last board meeting. Christine and Stephen 


worked together with the playground 


consultant and the Kompan people. The team 


met onsite and reviewed the space and 


discussed the structure..  Three competitive 


bids were received. Stephen reviewed the final 


price from each proposal (see board docs).  


IA savings from the original of $13,749 not 







including taxes and shipping. 


There is a small inventory in Texas. Due to 


supply chain issues, the other structures are 


less accessible so a focus on this specific 


structure is important. 


Stephen moves to approve the Kompan 


purchase proposal. 


Danielle seconds the motion 


 proposal.  


Vote: 


Ayes: Stephen R., Faraz S. and Danielle S  


Nayes: 0 


Abstain: 0 


➢ Discussion item:  


Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 


IA has submitted for Educator Effectiveness 


funds, and has received an apportionment of  


$102,671.00 


The local plan for the Educator Effectiveness 


funds (EEF) needs to be heard in a public 


meeting of the governing board of the charter 


school, before its adoption in a subsequent 


public meeting. This must take place on or 


before December 30, 2021. 


Funds may be expended during the 2021–22, 


2022–23, 2023–24, 2024–25 and 2025–26 


fiscal years 


 


Christine explained that this is the first of two 


meetings to approve the Educator 


Effectiveness Plan. She presented the plan. 


 


 


 


 


➢ Next board meeting 12/7/21 


o Confirm date of next meeting 12/7/21 @ 6:00 p.m. 


o Identify agenda items for next 


meeting 


Wallholla Playground structure presentation 


2nd meeting for Educator Effectiveness 


Meeting adjourned  Adjourned at 12:15 p.m. 


 


The foregoing minutes were approved by the 


Board of Directors of Innovations Academy 


on _________. 


 


__________________________________ 


       Secretary 







Please contact Innovations Academy Board @ Board@InnovationsAcademy.org if you require 


special assistance or a listening device to attend the Board Meeting.  Requests must be made 48 


hours in advance. 


 


1. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in 


teleconference meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are 


complied with: 


● At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate 


in the teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of the State of 


California; 


● All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;  


● If the Board of Directors elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all 


teleconference  


locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda 


of the  


meeting;  


● All locations where a member of the Board of Directors constituting the quorum 


participates in a  


meeting via teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public and 


shall be listed on  


the agenda;  


● Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall 


be provided  


with an opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference 


location;  


and  


● The agenda shall indicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted 


via  


teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.  


● The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public, to provide their names as a 


condition of attendance at the meeting; however, those wishing to speak may be 


required to identify themselves.  


 


 



mailto:Board@InnovationsAcademy.org






Charter School First Interim Report
Charter School Name: Innovations Academy FY 2021-2022 Financial Accounting Department


        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 For the Period July 1, 2021 through October 31, 2021 Charter Schools Accounting Office
   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District Accrual Basis Authorizing Agency Contact: Theresa Goody (tgoody@sandi.net)


       County: San Diego Authorizing Agency Contact: Nadine Creer (ncreer@sandi.net)
  SBE Charter #: 1024   


Has board approved a revised budget? (check box below)
No.
Yes. (Enter board approved revision date below) FALSE


Revised Date: ( A + C ) ( B + D) ( E + H ) ( G - E )
A B C D E F G H


Object Code  Unrestricted Budget 
Unrestricted 


Actuals through 
10/31/21


 Restricted 
Budget 


Restricted 
Actuals through 


10/31/21
Total Budget


Total Actuals 
through 


10/31/21


Projected EFB/NP 
(Higher of Budget 


or Actual)
Amount over Budget


A. REVENUES  (8000-8799)
1. Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Sources - (8011-8097)


LCFF State Aid - Current Year (CY) (Res 0000) 8011 843,193                           221,991                843,193                221,991               843,193                     -                                        
Education Protection Account State Aid (EPA) - CY (Res 1400) 8012 85,060                             19,675                  85,060                  19,675                 85,060                       -                                        
State Aid - Prior Years (LCFF State Aid and EPA) (Res 0000 and Res 1400) 8019 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Transfers to Charter Schools In Lieu of Property Taxes - CY & PY (Res 0000) 8096 2,957,821                       719,338                2,957,821            719,338               2,957,821                 -                                        
Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        


Total, LCFF Sources 3,886,074                       961,004                -                              -                              3,886,074            961,004               3,886,074                 -                                        
2. Federal Revenues (8100-8299)


ESEA (ESSA), Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected (Res 3010) 8290 33,392                  10,446                  33,392                  10,446                 33,392                       -                                        
ESEA (ESSA): Title II, Part A, Improving Teacher Quality Program (Res 4035) 8290 7,432                     2,169                     7,432                     2,169                    7,432                          -                                        
ESEA (ESSA): Title III, Limited English Proficient Student Program (Res 4203) 8290 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
ESEA (ESSA): Title III, Immigrant Education Program (Res 4201) 8290 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
ESEA (ESSA): Title IV, 21st Century Learning Communities (Res 4124) 8290 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
ESEA (ESSA): Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants (Res 4127 8290 10,000                  10,000                  -                             10,000                       -                                        
ESSA: Title V, Part B, Public Charter Schools Grant Program (Res 4610) 8290 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Fed SpEd, IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3310) 8181 51,250                  51,250                  -                             51,250                       -                                        
Fed Sp Ed, IDEA Mental Health Allocation Plan, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3327) 8182 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Child Nutrition - Federal  (NSLP) (Res 5310 and others) 8220 2,474                     2,474                     -                             2,474                          -                                        
Maintenance and Operations (Public Law 81-874) (Res 0000) 8110 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Other Federal Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8100-8299 62,240                  57,035                  62,240                  57,035                 62,240                       -                                        


Total - Federal Revenues -                                          -                              166,788                69,650                  166,788                69,650                 166,788                     -                                        
3. Other State Revenues (8300-8599) -                                        


State Special Education (Res 6500) 8792 260,481                75,982                  260,481                75,982                 260,481                     -                                        
State Special Education Mental Health Services (Res 6512) 8590 17,738                  17,738                  -                             17,738                       -                                        
Mandate Block Grant (Res 0000) 8550 6,734                              6,734                     -                             6,734                          -                                        
After School Education and Safety (ASES) (Res 6010) 8677, 8590 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Common Core Standards Implementation (Res 7405) 8590 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Charter School Facility Grant Program (SB 740) (Res 6030) 8590 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
COVID-19 LEA Response Funds (SB 117) (Res 7388) 8590 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Lottery, Unrestricted (Res 1100) 8560 63,792                             63,792                  -                             63,792                       -                                        
Lottery, Restricted - Prop 20 (Res 6300) 8560 20,839                  20,839                  -                             20,839                       -                                        
Proposition 39 - California Clean Energy Jobs Act (Res 6230) 8590 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Other State Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8300-8599 3,124                     325,389                325,389                3,124                    325,389                     -                                        


Total - Other State Revenues 70,526                             3,124                     624,447                75,982                  694,973                79,106                 694,973                     -                                        
4. Local Revenue (8600-8799) -                                        


All Local Revenues 8600-8799 42,680                  -                              42,680                 42,680                       42,680                            
Total - Local Revenues -                                          42,680                  -                              -                              -                              42,680                 42,680                       42,680                            


5. TOTAL REVENUES 3,956,600                     1,006,808          791,235              145,632              4,747,835          1,152,440         4,790,515               42,680                          
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER OUTGO (1000-7499)


1. Certificated Salaries 
Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,635,836                       487,509                160,099                50,143                  1,795,935            537,652               1,795,935                 -                                        
Pupil Support Salaries  1200 -                              99,080                  13,293                  99,080                  13,293                 99,080                       -                                        
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 118,000                           95,298                  156,223                3,585                     274,223                98,883                 274,223                     -                                        
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        


Total, Certificated Salaries 1,753,836                       582,807                415,402                67,021                  2,169,238            649,828               2,169,238                 -                                        


Description







Charter School First Interim Report
Charter School Name: Innovations Academy FY 2021-2022 Financial Accounting Department


        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 For the Period July 1, 2021 through October 31, 2021 Charter Schools Accounting Office
   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District Accrual Basis Authorizing Agency Contact: Theresa Goody (tgoody@sandi.net)


       County: San Diego Authorizing Agency Contact: Nadine Creer (ncreer@sandi.net)
  SBE Charter #: 1024   


Has board approved a revised budget? (check box below)
No.
Yes. (Enter board approved revision date below) FALSE


Revised Date: ( A + C ) ( B + D) ( E + H ) ( G - E )
A B C D E F G H


Object Code  Unrestricted Budget 
Unrestricted 


Actuals through 
10/31/21


 Restricted 
Budget 


Restricted 
Actuals through 


10/31/21
Total Budget


Total Actuals 
through 


10/31/21


Projected EFB/NP 
(Higher of Budget 


or Actual)
Amount over BudgetDescription


2. Classified Salaries -                                        
Instructional Salaries 2100 388,872                           133,981                35,872                  1,631                     424,744                135,611               424,744                     -                                        
Support Salaries 2200 99,550                             46,427                  -                              99,550                  46,427                 99,550                       -                                        
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries  2300 42,900                             42,900                  -                             42,900                       -                                        
Clerical and Office Salaries  2400 77,143                             44,194                  40,000                  32,141                  117,143                76,335                 117,143                     -                                        
Other Classified Salaries 2900 3,351                     -                              -                              3,351                    3,351                          3,351                              


Total, Classified Salaries 608,465                           227,953                75,872                  33,772                  684,337                261,725               687,688                     3,351                              
3. Employee Benefits -                                        


STRS 3101-3102 328,339                           102,533                36,602                  14,273                  364,941                116,806               364,941                     -                                        
PERS 3201-3202 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
OASDI/Medicare (Social Security) 3301-3302 78,692                             23,976                  5,881                     2,323                     84,573                  26,299                 84,573                       -                                        
Health and Welfare Benefits  3401-3402 217,925                           74,490                  58,287                  (1,963)                   276,212                72,526                 276,212                     -                                        
Unemployment Insurance  3501-3502 18,480                             2,260                     2,100                     -                              20,580                  2,260                    20,580                       -                                        
Workers' Compensation Insurance  3601-3602 28,615                             1,463                     2,774                     -                              31,389                  1,463                    31,389                       -                                        
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        


Total, Employee Benefits 672,051                           204,722                105,644                14,632                  777,695                219,354               777,695                     -                                        
4. Books and Supplies -                                        


Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 4,206                                4,856                     2,500                     29,063                  6,706                     33,920                 33,920                       27,214                            
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 6,500                                -                              5,500                     3,477                     12,000                  3,477                    12,000                       -                                        
Materials and Supplies 4300 75,500                             25,907                  34,000                  8,306                     109,500                34,212                 109,500                     -                                        
Non-capitalized Equipment 4400 135,302                           26,868                  57,000                  34,882                  192,302                61,750                 192,302                     -                                        
Food (Food used in food-service activities for which the purpose is nutrition) 4700 3,700                                -                              38                           3,700                     38                          3,700                          -                                        


Total, Books and Supplies 225,208                           57,631                  99,000                  75,766                  324,208                133,397               351,422                     27,214                            
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures -                                        


Subagreements for Services 5100 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Travel and Conferences 5200 8,813                              4,965                    19,000                  12,442                  27,813                  17,406                 27,813                       -                                        
Dues and Memberships 5300 3,500                              571                       -                            3,500                     571                       3,500                          -                                        
Insurance 5400 33,205                            21,787                  -                            33,205                  21,787                 33,205                       -                                        
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 81,836                            55,174                  60,000                  1,162                    141,836                56,336                 141,836                     -                                        
Rentals,Leases,Repairs,and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 61,420                            12,404                  1,200                    759                       62,620                  13,163                 62,620                       -                                        
Transfer of Direct Costs (MUST  net to zero) 5700 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Prof/Consulting Svcs and Operating Expend ( Include District Oversight ) 5800 298,811                          52,905                  71,078                  36,576                  369,889                89,481                 369,889                     -                                        
Communications 5900 33,696                            5,714                    500                       118                       34,196                  5,832                    34,196                       -                                        


Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 521,281                           153,521                151,778                51,056                  673,059                204,576               673,059                     -                                        
6. Capital Outlay -                                        


Depreciation Expense (See Sections G.9 & F.2.a) 6900 90,000                            90,000                  -                             90,000                       -                                        
Total, Capital Outlay 90,000                             -                              -                              -                              90,000                  -                             90,000                       -                                        
7. Other Outgo -                                        


Tuition to Other Schools (Include contribution to unfunded cost of Sp Ed.) 7110-7143 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec Ed and All Others 7221-7223 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
All Other Transfers 7280-7299 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Transfers of Indirect Costs ( MUST net to zero) 7300-7399 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Debt Service - Interest 7430-7439 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        
Debt Service - Principal  (FOR MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS ONLY) 7439 -                              -                             -                                   -                                        


Total, Other Outgo -                                          -                              -                              -                              -                              -                             -                                   -                                        


8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,870,841                     1,226,633          847,696              242,247              4,718,537          1,468,881         4,749,102               30,565                          
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND. 


BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8) 85,759                             (219,825)              (56,461)                (96,615)                29,298                  (316,441)             41,413                       







Charter School First Interim Report
Charter School Name: Innovations Academy FY 2021-2022 Financial Accounting Department


        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 For the Period July 1, 2021 through October 31, 2021 Charter Schools Accounting Office
   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District Accrual Basis Authorizing Agency Contact: Theresa Goody (tgoody@sandi.net)


       County: San Diego Authorizing Agency Contact: Nadine Creer (ncreer@sandi.net)
  SBE Charter #: 1024   


Has board approved a revised budget? (check box below)
No.
Yes. (Enter board approved revision date below) FALSE


Revised Date: ( A + C ) ( B + D) ( E + H ) ( G - E )
A B C D E F G H


Object Code  Unrestricted Budget 
Unrestricted 


Actuals through 
10/31/21


 Restricted 
Budget 


Restricted 
Actuals through 


10/31/21
Total Budget


Total Actuals 
through 


10/31/21


Projected EFB/NP 
(Higher of Budget 


or Actual)
Amount over BudgetDescription


D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (7600-7699, 8930-8999)
1. All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 -                              -                             -                                   
2. Other Uses 7630-7699 -                              -                             -                                   
3. Contributions between unrestricted and restricted accounts ( MUST net to zero) 8980-8999 (56,461)                           (96,615)                 56,461                  96,615                  -                              -                            -                                 


(Include contribution to the unfunded cost of Special Education)
4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (56,461)                            (96,615)                56,461                  96,615                  -                              -                             -                                   


E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (C + D.4.) 29,298                             (316,440)              -                              (0)                           29,298                  (316,441)             41,413                       


F. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION  (Budget and Actuals MUST  match) ( F.1.a-b)
1. Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position


a. July 1 (MUST match EFB/Net Position of PY Unaudited Actuals, Section F.2) 9791 2,878,971                       2,878,971            2,878,971            2,878,971           2,878,971                 
b. Adjustments/Restatements 9793, 9795 1,980                                1,980                     -                              1,980                     1,980                    1,980                          
c. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position 2,880,951                       2,880,951            -                              -                              2,880,951            2,880,951           2,880,951                 


2. Projected Ending Fund Balance/Net Position, June 30 (E + F.1.c.) See cell  M128 2,910,249                       2,564,511            -                              (0)                           2,910,249            2,564,510           2,922,365                 


Components of Ending Net Position
a. Net Investment in Capital Assets ( See Sections B.6 and G.9 ) 9796 -                             
b. Restricted Net Position 9797 (0)                           (0)                          
c. Unrestricted Net Position 9791 2,564,511            -                              2,564,511           


-                              
G. ASSETS 


1. Cash 
In County Treasury 9110 1,359,528            1,359,528           
Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 -                             
In Banks 9120 1,109,468            1,109,468           
In Revolving Fund 9130 -                             
With Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 -                             
Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 -                             


2. Investments 9150 -                             
3. Accounts Receivable 9200 -                             
4. Due From Grantor Government 9290 221,278                221,278               
5. Due From Other Funds 9310 -                             
6. Stores 9320 -                             
7. Prepaid Expenditures (Expenses) 9330 20,364                  20,364                 
8. Other Current Assets 9340 173,273                173,273               
9. Capital Assets (See Sections B.6 & F.2.a) 9400-9489 -                             
10. Total Assets 2,883,911            -                              2,883,911           


H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
1. Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 -                             
2. Total Deferred Outflows -                              -                              -                             







Charter School First Interim Report
Charter School Name: Innovations Academy FY 2021-2022 Financial Accounting Department


        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 For the Period July 1, 2021 through October 31, 2021 Charter Schools Accounting Office
   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District Accrual Basis Authorizing Agency Contact: Theresa Goody (tgoody@sandi.net)


       County: San Diego Authorizing Agency Contact: Nadine Creer (ncreer@sandi.net)
  SBE Charter #: 1024   


Has board approved a revised budget? (check box below)
No.
Yes. (Enter board approved revision date below) FALSE


Revised Date: ( A + C ) ( B + D) ( E + H ) ( G - E )
A B C D E F G H


Object Code  Unrestricted Budget 
Unrestricted 


Actuals through 
10/31/21


 Restricted 
Budget 


Restricted 
Actuals through 


10/31/21
Total Budget


Total Actuals 
through 


10/31/21


Projected EFB/NP 
(Higher of Budget 


or Actual)
Amount over BudgetDescription


I. LIABILITIES 
1. Accounts Payable 9500 53,894                  53,894                 
2. Due to Grantor Government 9590 43,345                  43,345                 
3. Due to Other Funds 9610 -                             
4. Current Loans 9640 -                             
5. Deferred Revenue 9650 222,161                222,161               
6. Long-term Liabilities 9660-9669 -                             
7. Total Liabilities 319,400                -                              319,400               


J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
1. Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 -                             
2. Total Deferred inflows of Resources -                              -                              -                             


K. ENDING FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION, October 31, 2021    
1. Ending Fund Balance/Net Position  (G10+H2-I7-J2) 2,564,511            -                              2,564,511           


(MUST  agree with F.2)







Instructions:
Column G "Preliminary Budget" - manual input (data source: Budget submitted in June 2021)


Charter School Name: Innovations Academy Column H "1st Interim Budget" - will automatically populate (linked to 1st Interim tab)
        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 Column I "$ Difference" - will automatically populate


   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District Column J "% Change" - will automatically populate
       County: San Diego Column K "Explanation" - provide an explanation if Column  J is highlighted in RED


  SBE Charter #: 1024


Object Code
Preliminary 


Budget           
(A)


1st Interim 
Budget                 


(B)


$ Difference                  
(Col B & A)                     


(C)


% Change                         
(C/A)                                        


(D)


Explanation of Change                                                                                                                                                                                               
(e.g. enrollment increase from 350 students to 280.; one-time purchase of 


100 chrome books, etc.)                                                                                                                                                    
=>10% and =>(-10%)                                                                                                                                                         


A. REVENUES  (8000-8799)
1. Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Sources - (8011-8097)


LCFF State Aid - Current Year (CY) (Res 0000) 8011 843,193            843,193           -                                         0%
Education Protection Account State Aid (EPA) - CY (Res 1400) 8012 85,060              85,060              -                                         0%
State Aid - Prior Years (LCFF State Aid and EPA) (Res 0000 and Res 1400) 8019 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Transfers to Charter Schools In Lieu of Property Taxes - CY & PY (Res 0000) 8096 2,957,821        2,957,821        -                                         0%
Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 -                          -                         -                                         0%


Total, LCFF Sources 3,886,074       3,886,074      -                                         0%
2. Federal Revenues (8100-8299)


ESEA (ESSA), Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected (Res 3010) 8290 33,392              33,392              -                                         0%
ESEA (ESSA): Title II, Part A, Improving Teacher Quality Program (Res 4035) 8290 7,432                 7,432                -                                         0%
ESEA (ESSA): Title III, Limited English Proficient Student Program (Res 4203) 8290 -                          -                         -                                         0%
ESEA (ESSA): Title III, Immigrant Education Program (Res 4201) 8290 -                          -                         -                                         0%
ESEA (ESSA): Title IV, 21st Century Learning Communities (Res 4124) 8290 -                          -                         -                                         0%
ESEA (ESSA): Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants (Res 4 8290 10,000              10,000              -                                         0%
ESSA: Title V, Part B, Public Charter Schools Grant Program (Res 4610) 8290 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Fed SpEd, IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3310) 8181 51,250              51,250              -                                         0%
Fed Sp Ed, IDEA Mental Health Allocation Plan, Part B, Sec 611 (Res 3327) 8182 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Child Nutrition - Federal  (NSLP) (Res 5310 and others) 8220 2,474                 2,474                -                                         0%
Maintenance and Operations (Public Law 81-874) (Res 0000) 8110 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Other Federal Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8100-8299 62,240              62,240              -                                         0%


Total - Federal Revenues 166,788          166,788          -                                         0%
3. Other State Revenues (8300-8599)


State Special Education (Res 6500) 8792 260,481            260,481           -                                         0%
State Special Education Mental Health Services (Res 6512) 8590 17,738              17,738              -                                         0%
Mandate Block Grant (Res 0000) 8550 6,734                 6,734                -                                         0%
After School Education and Safety (ASES) (Res 6010) 8677, 8590 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Common Core Standards Implementation (Res 7405) 8590 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Charter School Facility Grant Program (SB 740) (Res 6030) 8590 -                          -                         -                                         0%
COVID-19 LEA Response Funds (SB 117) (Res 7388) 8590 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Lottery, Unrestricted (Res 1100) 8560 63,792              63,792              -                                         0%
Lottery, Restricted - Prop 20 (Res 6300) 8560 20,839              20,839              -                                         0%
Proposition 39 - California Clean Energy Jobs Act (Res 6230) 8590 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Other State Revenues (All other resources not reported separately) 8300-8599 325,389            325,389           -                                         0%


Total - Other State Revenues 694,973          694,973          -                                         0%
4. Local Revenue (8600-8799)


All Local Revenues 8600-8799 -                         -                                         0%
Total - Local Revenues -                         -                         -                                         0%


5. TOTAL REVENUES 4,747,835       4,747,835      -                                         
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER OUTGO (1000-7499)


1. Certificated Salaries 
Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,795,935        1,795,935        -                                         0%
Pupil Support Salaries  1200 99,080              99,080              -                                         0%
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 274,223            274,223           -                                         0%
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 -                         -                                         0%


Total, Certificated Salaries 2,169,238       2,169,238      -                                         0%
2. Classified Salaries 


Instructional Salaries 2100 424,744            424,744           -                                         0%
Support Salaries 2200 99,550              99,550              -                                         0%
Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries  2300 42,900              42,900              -                                         0%
Clerical and Office Salaries  2400 117,143            117,143           -                                         0%
Other Classified Salaries 2900 -                         -                                         0%


Total, Classified Salaries 684,337          684,337          -                                         0%


Description


1st Interim Budget vs Preliminary Budget
Favorable / (Unfavorable)


BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS
1st Interim Budget vs Preliminary Budget


FY 2021-22







Instructions:
Column G "Preliminary Budget" - manual input (data source: Budget submitted in June 2021)


Charter School Name: Innovations Academy Column H "1st Interim Budget" - will automatically populate (linked to 1st Interim tab)
        CDS #: 37-68338-0118083 Column I "$ Difference" - will automatically populate


   Charter Approving Entity: San Diego Unified School District Column J "% Change" - will automatically populate
       County: San Diego Column K "Explanation" - provide an explanation if Column  J is highlighted in RED


  SBE Charter #: 1024


Object Code
Preliminary 


Budget           
(A)


1st Interim 
Budget                 


(B)


$ Difference                  
(Col B & A)                     


(C)


% Change                         
(C/A)                                        


(D)


Explanation of Change                                                                                                                                                                                               
(e.g. enrollment increase from 350 students to 280.; one-time purchase of 


100 chrome books, etc.)                                                                                                                                                    
=>10% and =>(-10%)                                                                                                                                                         


Description


1st Interim Budget vs Preliminary Budget
Favorable / (Unfavorable)


BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS
1st Interim Budget vs Preliminary Budget


FY 2021-22


3. Employee Benefits 
STRS 3101-3102 364,941            364,941           -                                         0%
PERS 3201-3202 -                          -                         -                                         0%
OASDI/Medicare (Social Security) 3301-3302 84,573              84,573              -                                         0%
Health and Welfare Benefits  3401-3402 276,212            276,212           -                                         0%
Unemployment Insurance  3501-3502 20,580              20,580              -                                         0%
Workers' Compensation Insurance  3601-3602 31,389              31,389              -                                         0%
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 -                          -                         -                                         0%
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 -                          -                         -                                         0%


Total, Employee Benefits 777,695          777,695          -                                         0%
4. Books and Supplies 


Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 6,706                 6,706                -                                         0%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 12,000              12,000              -                                         0%
Materials and Supplies 4300 109,500            109,500           -                                         0%
Non-capitalized Equipment 4400 192,302            192,302           -                                         0%
Food (Food used in food-service activities for which the purpose is nutrition) 4700 3,700                 3,700                -                                         0%


Total, Books and Supplies 324,208          324,208          -                                         0%
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 


Subagreements for Services 5100 -                         -                                         0%
Travel and Conferences 5200 27,813              27,813              -                                         0%
Dues and Memberships 5300 3,500                 3,500                -                                         0%
Insurance 5400 33,205              33,205              -                                         0%
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 141,836            141,836           -                                         0%
Rentals,Leases,Repairs,and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 62,620              62,620              -                                         0%
Transfer of Direct Costs (MUST  net to zero) 5700 -                          -                         -                                         0%
Prof/Consulting Svcs and Operating Expend ( Include District Oversight ) 5800 369,889            369,889           -                                         0%
Communications 5900 34,196              34,196              -                                         0%


Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 673,059          673,059          -                                         0%
6. Capital Outlay 


Depreciation Expense (See Sections G.9 & F.2.a) 6900 90,000              90,000              -                                         0%
Total, Capital Outlay 90,000             90,000             -                                         0%
7. Other Outgo 


Tuition to Other Schools (Include contribution to unfunded cost of Sp Ed.) 7110-7143 -                         -                                         0%
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 -                         -                                         0%
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec Ed and All Others 7221-7223 -                         -                                         0%
All Other Transfers 7280-7299 -                         -                                         0%
Transfers of Indirect Costs ( MUST net to zero) 7300-7399 -                         -                                         0%
Debt Service - Interest 7430-7439 -                         -                                         0%
Debt Service - Principal  (FOR MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS ONLY) 7439 -                         -                                         0%


Total, Other Outgo -                         -                         -                                         0%


8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,718,537       4,718,537      -                                         
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND. 


BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8) 29,298              29,298              


D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (7600-7699, 8930-8999)
1. All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 -                         -                                         
2. Other Uses 7630-7699 -                         -                                         
3. Contributions between unrestricted and restricted accounts ( MUST net to zero) 8980-8999 -                           -                          -                                         


(Include contribution to the unfunded cost of Special Education)
4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES -                         -                                         


E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (C + D.4.) 29,298              29,298              -                                         





		Interim Input

		Budget Variance Analysis






LEA Name:


Contact Name:


Email Address:


Phone Number:


Total Amount of funds 


received by the LEA:


Date of Public Meeting 


prior to Adoption:


Date of adoption at a 


public meeting:


EC 41480


Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021


Expenditure Plan Template


Innovations Academy


Christine Kuglen


christine@innovationsacademy.org


858-271-1414


$102,671.00 


17-Nov-21


December


(a)(2) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school may expend the funds 


received pursuant to this subdivision from the 2021–22 fiscal year to the 2025–26 fiscal year, inclusive. School 


districts, county offices of education, charter schools, and state special schools shall coordinate the use of any 


federal funds received under Title II of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015 (Public Law 114–95) to 


support teachers and administrators with the expenditure of funds received pursuant to this subdivision.


(b) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school shall expend funds 


apportioned pursuant to this section to provide professional learning for teachers, administrators, 


paraprofessionals who work with pupils, and classified staff that interact with pupils, with a focus on any of the 


following areas:



mailto:christine@innovationsacademy.org

mailto:christine@innovationsacademy.org

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=41480.&lawCode=EDC

mailto:christine@innovationsacademy.org





Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


Classroom Management 


Coaching $ - $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $6,000.00 


Subtotal for this section: $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $6,000.00 


Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


Math Workshop Training 


for teachers $19,000.00 $ - $ - $ - $ - $19,000.00 


Literacy Training for 


teachers, 


paraprofessionals and 


special ed staff $- $5,000.00 $ - $ - $ - $5,000.00 


(2) Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and improve instruction in literacy across all 


subject areas, including English language arts, history-social science, science, technology, engineering, 


mathematics, and computer science.


Note: Mathematics focus for the 21-22 school year


(1) Coaching and mentoring of staff serving in an instructional setting and beginning teacher or administrator 


induction, including, but not limited to, coaching and mentoring solutions that address a local need for teachers 


that can serve all pupil populations with a focus on retaining teachers, and offering structured feedback and 


coaching systems organized around social-emotional learning, including, but not limited to, promoting teacher 


self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationships, and responsible decision-making skills, 


improving teacher attitudes and beliefs about one's self and others, and supporting learning communities for 


educators to engage in a meaningful classroom teaching experience.







High Academic 


Achievement within 


Project Based Learning $ - $ - $ 5000.00- $ - $ - $5,000.00 


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


Subtotal for this section: $19,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $ - $ - $29,000.00 


Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


Responsive Classroom 


Training for staff $- $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


Subtotal for this section: $ - $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 


Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


SEL training for 


paraprofessionals $- $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $9,600.00 


(3) Practices and strategies that reengage pupils and lead to accelerated learning.


(4) Strategies to implement social-emotional learning, trauma-informed practices, suicide prevention, access to 


mental health services, and other approaches that improve pupil well-being.







SEL training for new 


teachers $ - $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 


$ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


Subtotal for this section: $ - $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $17,600.00 


Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


PD School Climate $750.00 $750.00 $750.00 $750.00 $3,000.00 


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


Subtotal for this section: $ - $750.00 $750.00 $750.00 $750.00 $3,000.00 


Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


(5) Practices to create a positive school climate, including, but not limited to, restorative justice, training around 


implicit bias, providing positive behavioral supports, multitiered systems of support, transforming a schoolsite's 


culture to one that values diverse cultural and ethnic backgrounds, and preventing discrimination, harassment, 


bullying, and intimidation based on actual or perceived characteristics, including disability, gender, gender 


identity, gender expression, language, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, or sexual orientation.


(6) Strategies to improve inclusive practices, including, but not limited to, universal design for learning, best 


practices for early identification, and development of individualized education programs for individuals with 


exceptional needs.







Special Ed Training for 


staff $ - $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $6,000.00 


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


Subtotal for this section: $ - $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $6,000.00 


Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $0 


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $0 


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $0 


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $0 


Subtotal for this section: $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $0 


(7) Instruction and education to support implementing effective language acquisition programs for English 


learners, which may include integrated language development within and across content areas, and building and 


strengthening capacity to increase bilingual and biliterate proficiency.


(8) New professional learning networks for educators not already engaged in an education-related professional 


learning network to support the requirements of subdivision (c).
(c) To ensure professional development meets educator and pupil needs, local educational agencies are encouraged to allow schoolsite and content staff 


to identify the topic or topics of professional learning. Professional learning provided pursuant to this section shall do both of the following:


(1) Be content focused, incorporate active learning, support collaboration, use models of effective practice, provide coaching and expert support, offer 


feedback and reflection, and be of sustained duration.


(2) As applicable, be aligned to the academic content standards adopted pursuant to Sections 51226, 60605, 60605.1, 60605.2, 60605.3, 60605.4, 


60605.8, and 60605.11, and the model curriculum adopted pursuant to Section 51226.7, as those sections read on June 30, 2020, and former Section 


60605.85, as that section read on June 30, 2014.







Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


Teacher selected, school 


approved academic 


professional learning $- $6,750.00 $6,750.00 $6,750.00 $6,750.00 $27,000.00 


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


Subtotal for this section: $ - $6,750.00 $6,750.00 $6,750.00 $6,750.00 $27,000.00 


Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0


Subtotal for this section: $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0


Planned Activity


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26


Total Budgeted 


per Activity


(9) Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate ethnic studies curricula adopted pursuant to Section 


51226.7 into pupil instruction for grades 7 to 12, inclusive.


(10) Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and classified educators in early childhood education, 


or childhood development.







Child Development Study 


for instructional staff $ - $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1000.00- $1,000.00 $4,000.00 


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -


Subtotal for this section: $ - $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1000.00- $1,000.00 $4,000.00 


Section Totals


Budgeted


2021-22


Budgeted


2022-23


Budgeted


2023-24


Budgeted


2024-25


Budgeted


2025-26 Total Budgeted 


Totals By Year: $19,000.00 $23,400.00 $23,400.00 $18,400.00 $18,400.00 102,600.00


Allocation:


$102,671 


Variance:


$71.00 


Expenditures and Allocation Match


Budgeting Planner:


$102,600.00 


Summary of Expenditures


Total Planned Expenditures by the LEA:








e turned on in screen rea 


COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) 
Safe Return to In Person Instruction 
originally created January 2021
Reviewed June 2021
Reviewed and Revised December 2021







COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) for Innovations Academy 


This CPP is designed to control exposures to the SARS-CoV-2 virus that may occur in our 


workplace. Date: January 29, 2021/ June 2021/ December 2021


Authority and Responsibility 
Christine Kuglen has overall authority and responsibility for implementing the provisions of this CPP in 
our workplace. In addition, all administrative staff are responsible for implementing and maintaining the 
CPP in their assigned work areas and for ensuring employees receive answers to questions about the 
program in a language they understand. 


All employees are responsible for using safe work practices, following all directives, policies and 
procedures, and assisting in maintaining a safe work environment. 


Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards 


We will implement the following in our workplace: 


• Conduct workplace-specific evaluations on a monthly basis.
• Evaluate employees’ potential workplace exposures to all persons at, or who may enter, our school.


Review applicable orders and general and industry-specific guidance from the State of California,
Cal/OSHA, and the local health department related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention.


• Evaluate existing COVID-19 prevention controls in our workplace and the need for different or
additional controls.


• Conduct periodic inspections  as needed to identify unhealthy conditions, work practices, and work
procedures related to COVID-19 and to ensure compliance with our COVID-19 policies and
procedures.


Employee participation 


Employees and any authorized employee representatives are encouraged to participate in the 
identification and evaluation of COVID-19 hazards by notifying administrative staff of any concerns 
immediately via text or email. Employees have been informed that there will be no retaliation for an 
employee speaking up to help protect themselves or others from any hazard or situation that 
jeopardizes the health and safety of our students and staff.


Employee screening 


We screen our employees by: Employees self-screen daily prior to coming to work and report any 
symptoms immediately to administration. Employees, whether vaccinated or not, must be wearing a 
mask to enter the building. Employees are encouraged to stay home if they have any of the symptoms 
of COVID-19. They can contact an administrator day or night. They will be provided a substitute to take 
their position or support them while they are working remotely from school. 


All employees who are not vaccinated take a COVID-19 test weekly and submit the results. 


Correction of COVID-19 Hazards 


Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices or procedures will be reported by employees 
immediately and corrected in a timely manner based on the severity of the hazards, as follows: 


When an unsafe situation or condition is reported or found during an inspection using the COVID-19 







Inspections form, the director will be notified immediately. 


• For facility and maintenance and sanitation issues, the director will assess the severity of the
hazard. The director will then assign the task to the Facilities Manager who will determine the
time frame needed for correction. A decision about closure of a specific area until correction will
be made. The Facilities manager will follow up with the director daily or until the situation is
remedied.


• For issues regarding availability of supplies, the director will evaluate the situation and assign the
task as needed to an office staff member. The assigned staff person will follow up with the
director daily or until the situation is remedied.


• For issues of safety in the classroom that are related to educational implementation of COVID-19
procedures, the director will speak with the teacher of the classroom and collaboratively
determine a solution to be implemented. The director will follow up with the teacher within 24
hours to verify implementation.


Control of COVID-19 Hazards 


Physical Distancing 


Where possible, we ensure at least three feet of physical distancing in our workplace by: 


• Except when necessary, we allow only employees, students and cleared volunteers and repair
people to enter the building. For issues regarding facility safety, a contracted repair person may
enter but must wear a mask and stay at least 6 feet from staff and students. Repairs will take place
outside of school hours when possible.


• Allowing no visitors/tours to enter the building. All deliveries are made to the immediate front desk.
• The floors are visually marked with arrows such that path of traffic is obvious to all moving in shared


spaces.
• Students arrive on the far side of the playground. Student breaks are taken in a staggered format to


decrease the number of students on the playground. Students learn in stable groups in assigned
areas. Dismissal is also done in a staggered fashion. Students remain in their stable group
classroom until they are called to meet their parent in the pick-up line of cars.


• Bathrooms are designated for specific grades.
• Individuals will be kept as far apart as possible when there are situations where three feet of


physical distancing cannot be achieved.


Face Coverings 


We provide clean, undamaged face coverings and ensure they are properly worn by employees over 
the nose and mouth when indoors including non-employees such as repair workers, and where 
required by orders from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) or local health department.   


Staff and students may bring/wear their own mask as long as it meets the guidelines in Education 
Code section 3205(c)(6) or they may use a mask available at the gate or from the front office. Both 
child and adult sized masks are available. Once used, they may elect to wash their mask or take it to 
the Facility Manager for cleaning.  


If an employee or student encounters someone not wearing a mask in our building, they will report it to 
the director immediately. The person will be offered a mask or asked to leave the building immediately. 


The following are exceptions to the use of face coverings in our school: 


• When an employee is alone in a room.
• While eating and drinking at the workplace, provided employees are at least six feet apart and


outside air supply to the area, if indoors, has been maximized to the extent possible.
• Employees who cannot wear face coverings due to a medical or mental health condition or disability,







or who are hearing-impaired or communicating with a hearing-impaired person. Alternatives will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis. 


Any employee not wearing a face covering, face shield with a drape or other effective alternative, or 
respiratory protection, for any reason (eating, alone in a room), shall be at least six feet apart from all 
other persons unless the unmasked employee is tested at least twice weekly for COVID-19. 


Engineering/Building controls 


We maximize, to the extent feasible, the quantity of outside air for our buildings with mechanical or 
natural ventilation systems by:  


• Ventilation systems are checked twice yearly by a professional HVAC company. Our Facilities
Manager maintains ongoing contact with them as issues arise.


• We are currently using MERV-13 filters and have approximately 10% fresh air continuously
entering the building.


• Each room is on its own air flow system such that air is not shared between rooms therefore stable
groups have their own air supply.


• All classrooms have an additional air filter running in the classroom throughout the day.


Cleaning and disinfecting 


We implement the following cleaning and disinfection measures for frequently touched surfaces: 


• All students have hand sanitizers available in their classrooms.


• There are ample sinks available in classrooms and bathrooms stocked with soap and sanitizer.


• Sanitizer is available throughout the building and at all entrances/exits.


Should we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will implement the following procedures: 


• The custodial staff person wears an enclosed protective suit, a face shield and N-95 mask for
protection and has been trained. This staff person will sanitize the space.


• If a COVID-19 case has been present on campus, our custodial staff will immediately disinfect any
areas of contact using an electrostatic disinfecting machine and Vital-oxide. All frequently touched
surfaces will be wiped down with disinfecting cleaners.


Items with which employees have regular physical contact, such as phones, headsets, desks, 
keyboards, writing materials, instruments and tools will also not be shared, to the extent feasible. Where 
there must be sharing, the items will be disinfected between uses by our designated custodial staff 
member or by the person who was previously using the area.


Hand sanitizing 


In order to implement effective hand sanitizing procedures, we: 


• Have trained all of our employees and students in effective handwashing and sanitizing
• Provide designated bathrooms per grade level to limit the number of students/employees using each







bathroom and to protect the integrity of our stable student groups. 
• Evaluate the bathrooms regularly.
• Encourage and allow time for handwashing at classroom sinks and when returning from the


playground.
• Providing effective hand sanitizers for each classroom, in each room of the building and at all


entrances. We do not use hand sanitizers that contain methanol (i.e. methyl alcohol).


Personal protective equipment (PPE) used to control employees’ exposure to COVID-19 


We evaluate the need for PPE (such as gloves, goggles, and face shields) as required by CCR Title 8, 
section 3380, and provide such PPE as needed. 
When it comes to respiratory protection, we evaluate the need in accordance with CCR Title 8 section 
5144 when the physical distancing requirements are not feasible or maintained.  
We provide and ensure use of eye protection and respiratory protection in accordance with section 5144 
when employees are exposed to procedures that may aerosolize potentially infectious material such as 
saliva or respiratory tract fluids.  


Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases 


Employees who had potential COVID-19 exposure in our workplace will be: 


• Referred to the free SD County testing sites and given time to be tested. Offered COVID-19 testing
at no cost during their working hours.


• Required to follow the guidance set forth in the California Department of Public Health document,
“COVID-19 and Reopening In-Person Instruction Framework & Public Health Guidance for K-12
Schools in California, 2021-22 School Year” which will be updated using information from the
California Department of Public Health information as well as data from SD County Public Health.


• We adhere to the San Diego County COVID-19 Decision Tree for reporting, isolation and
quarantine.


1. We adhere to required reporting requirements and notify, as indicated, the County Public Health
Department of any newly reported case of COVID-19 in a student or staff member to find out if they have
previously been notified about the case.
2. If the case is present at school at the time the school is notified, the person must go home and be
excluded from school based on the updated COVID-19 Decision Trees for K-12 Education created by the Public
Health Department.
3. We send a notice, developed in collaboration with the County Health Department, to parents and staff to
inform them that a case of COVID-19 in a student or staff member has been reported and that the school will
work with the SD County Health Department to notify exposed people.
4. We will arrange for cleaning and disinfection of the classroom and primary spaces where case spent
significant time before being identified. This will be done once students and staff have vacated the area.
5. Students, when excluded from campus due to possible exposure of identified case will be welcomed into
our remote learning program and sign a Master Agreement for their time in isolation/quarantine if they are well
enough to participate. They will be provided an education plan based on the requirements in place by the
California Department of Education, their Master Agreement, classroom assignments and, if a student with
disabilities, will continue their services based on their IEP. They will be provided all materials necessary during
their quarantine period.







School Closure
School closure determinations will be made in consultation with the County Public Health Department. It is 
understood that we may be allowed to continue to be open even with confirmed cases or a small cluster of 
COVID-19 cases as long as contact tracing identifies all school contacts for exclusion and testing in a timely 
manner, any small cluster is investigated and controlled rapidly, and the SDPH agrees that the school can 
remain open.  


Measures for an Investigation of a Cluster or Outbreak  
When we are made aware that an outbreak may be underway, an investigation will be done, to determine 
whether these cases had a common exposure at school (e.g., a common class or staff member, or other 
common exposures outside of school).   
CDPH defines a school outbreak as 3 or more confirmed or probable cases of staff or students occurring 
within a 14-day period who are epidemiologically linked in the school, are from different households and are 
not contacts of each other in any other investigation cases (e.g., transmission likely occurred in the school 
setting). The objectives of a school outbreak investigation are to identify and isolate all cases and to 
identify, quarantine, and test contacts to prevent further transmission of COVID-19 at the school.  


System of Communication 


Our goal is to ensure that we have effective two-way communication with our employees, in a form they can 
readily understand, and that it includes the following information: 
• Employees should report COVID-19 symptoms and possible hazards to the School Director or Accountability
Coordinator immediately via text, phone call or in person conversation.
• Employees can report symptoms and hazards without fear of reprisal and have been notified of such.
• We currently do not have any employees with medical or other conditions that would put them at increased
risk of severe COVID-19 illness. If an employee is hired with such risks they would be working remotely.
• Employees can access COVID-19 testing via all FREE county sites. A link is found on our shared staff
meeting document at the top. If a rapid test is approved by the director, the school will provide the test. All
unvaccinated staff test weekly.
• In the event we are required to provide testing because of a workplace exposure or outbreak, we will
communicate the plan for providing testing and inform affected employees of the reason for the testing and the
possible consequences of a positive test.







Training and Instruction 


We will provide effective training and instruction that includes: 


• Our COVID-19 policies and procedures to protect employees from COVID-19 hazards.


• Information regarding COVID-19-related benefits to which the employee may be entitled under


applicable federal, state, or local laws.


• The fact that:
o COVID-19 is an infectious disease that can be spread through the air.
o COVID-19 may be transmitted when a person touches a contaminated object and then touches


their eyes, nose, or mouth.
o An infectious person may have no symptoms.


• Methods of physical distancing of at least six feet and the importance of combining physical
distancing with the wearing of face coverings.


• The fact that particles containing the virus can travel more than six feet, especially indoors, so


physical distancing must be combined with other controls, including face coverings and hand


hygiene, to be effective.


• The importance of frequent hand washing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds and using


hand sanitizer when employees do not have immediate access to a sink or hand washing facility,


and that hand sanitizer does not work if the hands are soiled.


• Proper use of face coverings and the fact that face coverings are not respiratory protective
equipment - face coverings are intended to primarily protect other individuals from the wearer of the
covering. face


• COVID-19 symptoms, and the importance of obtaining a COVID-19 test and not coming to work if
the employee has COVID-19 symptoms.


• How to encourage students who are exhibiting reluctant or negligent mask wearing practices.


D: COVID-19 Training Roster will be used to document this training. 


Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases 


Where we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will limit transmission by: 


• Ensuring that COVID-19 cases are excluded from the workplace until our return-to-work
requirements are met.


• Excluding employees with COVID-19 exposure from the workplace based on the current guidelines
available from the California Department of Public Health.


• Continuing and maintaining an employee’s earnings, seniority, and all other employee rights and


benefits whenever we have demonstrated that the COVID-19 exposure is school/work related. This


will be accomplished by making substitute workers available and providing information to employees


based on the situation.


• Providing employees at the time of exclusion with information on available benefits.







Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Access 


It is our policy to: 


• Report information about COVID-19 cases at our workplace to the local health department whenever
required by law, and provide any related information requested by the local health department.


• Report immediately to Cal/OSHA any COVID-19-related serious illnesses or death, as defined under
CCR Title 8 section 330(h), of an employee occurring in our place of employment or in connection
with any employment.


• Maintain records of the steps taken to implement our written COVID-19 Prevention Program in
accordance with CCR Title 8 section 3203(b).


• Make our written COVID-19 Prevention Program available at the workplace and online to employees,
authorized employee representatives, and to representatives of Cal/OSHA immediately upon
request.


Return-to-Work Criteria 


• COVID-19 cases with COVID-19 symptoms will not return to work until all the following have
occurred:
o At least 24 hours have passed since a fever of 100.4 or higher has resolved without the use of


fever-reducing medications.
o COVID-19 symptoms have improved.
o At least 10 days have passed since COVID-19 symptoms first appeared.


• COVID-19 cases who tested positive but never developed COVID-19 symptoms will not return to
work until a minimum of 10 days have passed since the date of specimen collection of their first
positive COVID-19 test.


• A negative COVID-19 test will not be required for an employee to return to work.
• If an order to isolate or quarantine an employee is issued by a local or state health official, the


employee will not return to work until the period of isolation or quarantine is completed or the order is
lifted. If no period was specified, then the period will be 10 days from the time the order to isolate
was effective, or 14 days from the time the order to quarantine was effective.


  Christine Kuglen, Director    12/03/2021 












Innovations Academy 
Board Narrative  
December 7, 2021 
 
 
Approval of 1st Interim Report 
 
The 1st interim is a report sent to the district to show them your latest budget as well as what your 
actual data is from the period of July 2021 to October 2021. Please see the attached labeled “FY2021-22 
First Interim Report Innovations Academy” and note the “Interim Input” tab and the primary row 
labeled “E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION” and “2. Projected Ending Fund 
Balance/Net Position, June 30” and regarding columns, please focus on “‘F’ Total Actuals through 
10/31/21”. 
 
The school’s actuals for this period are a deficit of <~$316K> and thus yielding a total fund balance of 
~$2.6M. 
 
At this point in time, the school did not feel the need to revise the budget. Thus, the data that is in 
column E “Total Budget” has not changed since the original board approved budget for the year 
(Approved during the June 2021 meeting).  
 
 
 





